
VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 
 Meeting Announcement & Agenda at 7:00 p.m. 

Monday, August 17, 2015 
Village Hall, 810 Shorewood Boulevard  

 
1. Call to Order 
2. Roll Call 
3. Statement of Public Notice 
4. Procedures Orientation 
5. Appearances and Communications 

i) Gary Johnson – 4th of July synopsis 
ii) Marilyn Townsend- Request that the Board consider  policy related to 

taping of meetings  
6. Board Matters 

A. Payment of Bills 
B. Consent Agenda 

i) July 9 special, July 20 open and closed session minutes 
ii) Block Party Permits: 3100 block of Oxford Road – Sunday, September 13 
iii) Class A Liquor License – Lee’s Oriental 
iv)  LTE hires for tennis, basketball and public works 
v) Wage adjustment for Police seasonal CSO including retroactivity 
vi) Wage adjustments for five pool employees due to position/qualification 

changes 
C. Ordinances 

i) First reading of an Ordinance L-2015-2 Amending Section 7.08(2) 
Parking ,Stopping and Standing regulated by extending no parking except 
by permit to include Saturdays, Sundays and holidays on the west side of 
University Bay Drive from 918 University Bay Drive to Oxford Road 

ii) Second and possible third reading of an Ordinance L-2015-3 Adopting 
General and Specific Development Plans for ATT Plaza redevelopment 

iii) First and possible second reading of an Ordinance L-2015-4 attaching 
territory from the City of Madison 

D. New Business Resolutions and Motions 
i) Resolution R-2015-9 Thanking City of Madison Fire Department for 

providing the Village with high quality service 
ii) Consider approval of certified survey map ATT Plaza with conditions 
iii) Consider action on communication from Wisconsin Professional Police 

Officers Association requesting representation of Shorewood Hills Police 
Association as bargaining agent and whether to recognize unit or require 
an election (may require closed session) 

1 of 2 



              
 
PLEASE TAKE NOTICE, that any person who has a qualifying disability as defined by the Americans with Disability Act that requires the 
meeting or materials at the meeting to be in an accessible location or format, should contact the Municipal Clerk, 810 Shorewood Boulevard, or 
phone 267-2680, during regular business hours at least 48 hours before the meeting so that reasonable arrangements can be made to 
accommodate each request. 
 
It is possible that members of, and possibly a quorum of members of other governmental bodies of the Village of Shorewood Hills who are not 
members of the above committee may be in attendance at the above stated meeting to gather information. However, no formal action will be 
taken by any governmental body at the above meeting other than the committee identified in the caption of this notice. 
 

2 of 2 

iv) Consider action on communication from Marilyn Townsend requesting 
amendments to October 27 and November 17 Board minutes to include 
Trustee discussions regarding potential ethics violations 

v) Consider bid and contract award for sanitary sewer lining project Lake 
Mendota Drive area 

E. Appointments 
7. Reports of Officials and Committees 

A. Village President 
i) Status of noise complaint issue 

B. Village Administrator 
i) Status of access issue Boathouse/marina 

C. Personnel Committee 
D. Finance Committee 
E. Plan Commission 

i) Pyare Square Lodge II project status 
ii) University Bay Fields status 

F. Public Works Committee 
G. Services Committee 
H. Public Health and Safety Committee 
I. Recreation Committee 
J. Parks Committee 
K. Pool Committee 
 
Please take notice that the Board may adjourn to Closed Session as per §19.85(1)(e) due 
to bargaining reasons and may reconvene to open session as per Wisconsin State Statutes 
19.85(2) to address any business that may be the result of the deliberations made in 
closed session (Police Association request for representation by WPPA) 

 
8. Adjourn 



NOTES TO THE AGENDA AUGUST 17, 2015 
Appearances and Communications 
Gary Johnson – Gary will present the July 4 fireworks financials and summarize the event.  His 
report is included in the packet. 2015 was banner year in terms of donations and Village born 
costs were at an all time low. If not for the hours  and hours of volunteer work put in by Gary, 
David Sykes and the rest of the Association, costs would likely double or triple for half the show 
meaning there would probably be no show at all.  We see Gary a lot at Village Hall through the 
spring and summer as he prepares and fine-tunes this large community event.  He and David 
deserve a ton of credit and thanks for what they do! 
 
Payment of Bills – The bills are enclosed in the amount of $981,583.35 
 
Consent Agenda 
July 20 open and closed session minutes – Enclosed. 
 
Block Party Permits: 3100 block of Oxford Road – Sunday, September 13 – Enclosed and 
recommended for approval.  
 
Class A Liquor License – Lee’s Oriental – The application and an explanatory memo from 
David Sykes are enclosed. This license would allow the sale of intoxicating beverages for off 
premise consumption.  
 
LTE hires for tennis, basketball and public works 
Wage adjustment for Police seasonal CSO including retroactivity 
Wage adjustments for five pool employees due to position/qualification changes 
The Personnel Committee has reviewed and recommend approval of the above three Personnel 
related wage/hire items. Supporting information is enclosed that documents the recommended 
actions. 
 
Ordinances 
First reading of an Ordinance L-2015-2 Amending Section 7.08(2) Parking, Stopping and 
Standing regulated by extending no parking except by permit to include Saturdays, 
Sundays and holidays on the west side of University Bay Drive from 918 University Bay 
Drive to Oxford Road – The Public Works Committee has recommended approval of this 
ordinance and we have worked on the semantics as requested.  Gaylene Bennett who resides on 
U Bay Drive approached the Public Works/Traffic   Committee concerned about hospital 
employees parking up U Bay Drive on the weekends. Since then two other residents on UBD 
have echoed the concerns. This ordinance will extend no parking restrictions without a permit to 
Saturday, Sunday and holidays. The draft ordinance is enclosed.  
 
It is possible this will push the problem to adjacent streets. The Public Works Committee 
indicated that they will monitor this and address it if a problem surfaces.   
 
 Second and possible third reading of an Ordinance L-2015-3 Adopting General and 
Specific Development Plans for ATT Plaza redevelopment – The Board waived the first 



             
 
 
 

2 of 3 

reading of an ordinance   to rezone this property at the last meeting.  If approved it will adopt the 
plan for redevelopment of this site by Flad Development.  
 
 The project also requests tax increment financing assistance to include affordable housing units 
and tenant relocation expenses. Those decisions will be handled separately.  The request as it 
stands presently would require a project plan amendment to the TID project budget. The Board 
meeting in September will include analysis of this and other TIF requests as well as as options 
the Village may wish to consider regarding forming new districts in response to development 
activities and possible Village public improvements.  The packet includes some preliminary 
information for your review that the Plan Commission received at their last meeting. 
 
First and possible second reading of an Ordinance L-2015-4 attaching territory fro m the 
City of Madison – There is a small strip of property on the Pyare Square site that is in the City 
of Madison and  be detached  from the City and attach it to the Village as a  housekeeping matter 
to alleviate any jurisdictional issue such as zoning and taxation. There is a statutory procedure 
that must be followed to accomplish this. First a petition is filed by the property owner to the 
attaching entity, that entity then   publishes it.  The petition is then considered by the detaching 
entity. These three steps have been accomplished. Lastly the attaching entity must approve the 
land attachment through an ordinance.  We are now at that stage. A copy of the petition, map and  
City documentation is enclosed as well as the ordinance and a supporting  memo from legal 
counsel  There are also statutory timing deadlines that must be followed one of which is that we 
must approve the attachment within sixty day of the detaching action. 
 
New Business Resolutions and Motions – 
Resolution R-2015-9 Thanking City of Madison Fire Department for providing the Village 
with high quality service - The last Board packet included a year to date report from Madison 
Fire on Village calls The Public Health Safety Committee also reviewed and discussed the report 
and our experience to date.  That experience by all accounts has been extremely positive. At the 
staff level communications have been excellent and we have had no complaints related to 
inspections, fire protection development reviews or customer service.  The Committee felt the 
Village should express its satisfaction officially and send an appreciative message. If approved 
the resolution will be sent to the Fire Chief, Mayor and Station Nine. 
 
Consider approval of certified survey map ATT Plaza with conditions – The certified survey 
map is enclosed and has been recommended by the Plan Commission and reviewed by the 
Village Planner and Engineer. Those reviews resulted in some technical cleanups of rights of 
way and easements. 
An action to approve should be conditioned on: 

• the developer taking title to the property   
• approval of the zoning   
• a development agreement being signed and entered into  by the developer and Village  

 
Consider action on communication from Wisconsin Professional Police Officers 
Association requesting representation of Shorewood Hills Police Association as bargaining 
agent and whether to recognize unit or require an election (may require closed session) The 
Personnel Committee has met and proceeded with the directions the Board provided at its last 



             
 
 
 

3 of 3 

meeting. It is anticipated that the Board will adjourn to closed session to discuss this matter 
further.  Legal counsel will also be present and was also at the Personnel meeting. 
 
Consider action on communication from Marilyn Townsend requesting amendments to 
October 27 and November 17 Board minutes to include Trustee discussions regarding 
potential ethics violations – The communication is included in the packet.  
 
Consider bid and contract award for sanitary sewer lining project Lake Mendota Drive 
area – Bids are due on Monday and the Village Engineer will be attending to present the bid 
results and make a recommendation. $150,000 was included in the capital budget. This clay 
sewer line is located off street on the lake side of homes and even runs under some homes (map 
enclosed).  It is very difficult and in some areas impossible to clean. Video shows segments of 
cracked pipe, open joints and roots. 
 
This project will use cured in place pipe technology. CIPP is a trenchless method to repair 
existing pipelines. The result is a seamless jointless pipe within a pipe. Root problems occur at 
clay pipe joints where roots enter the pipe and then happily grow in a nutrient rich environment 
into masses that block flow and catch other materials.  These joints will no longer exist after the 
project except where laterals meet the pipe. In other areas of the Village the crew can use our 
jetter and root cutter. Here we can’t get access to bring machines in. 











PD = Fully Paid Invoice     PR = Partially Paid Invoice  

 
VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS    Payment Approval Report by GL No - Dept Heads Page:     1 

Paid / Unpaid Invoices  07/31/2015 - 07/31/2015 Aug 14, 2015  03:23pm 
 

GL Acct No Vendor Vendor Name Description Invoice No Inv Date Amount

100-211535 GENERAL FUND - AFLAC INSURANCE
1210 AFLAC INSURANCE PREMIUM 07302015 07/30/2015 325.88 PD

23012 WAGEWORKS SERVICE FEE 25AI0409029 07/17/2015 70.00 PD
395.88   *

100-211541 GENERAL FUND - ICMA PAYABLE
9122 ICMA RETIREMENT TRUST 457 INC. PAYROLL CONTR. 07212015 07/21/2015 150.00 PD
9122 ICMA RETIREMENT TRUST 457 INC. PAYROLL CONTRIBUTIONS 7302015 07/30/2015 150.00 PD

300.00   *
100-211543 GENERAL FUND - WI DEFERRED PAYABLE

7714 GREAT WEST PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS 07202015 07/20/2015 1,950.00 PD
7714 GREAT WEST PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS 7302015 07/30/2015 1,950.00 PD

3,900.00  *
100-211545 GENERAL FUND - FED/FICA/MED TAX PAYABLE

6210 FEDERAL WITHHOLDING EFTPS FED WITHHOLDING 07222015 07/22/2015 20,399.33 PD

100-211549 GENERAL FUND - SWT PAYABLE
23387 WI DEPT OF REVENUE (EMP W/H) STATE WITHHOLDING TAX 7232015 07/23/2015 2,684.02 PD
23387 WI DEPT OF REVENUE (EMP W/H) STATE WITHHOLDING TAX 7312015 07/31/2015 2,772.78 PD

5,456.80   *
100-45-4511-000 GENERAL FUND - FINES, FORFEITS, & PENALTIES - 100-45-4511 - COURT FINES

1000748 HAYES, BRIAN M REFUND OVERPAY ON CIT#S633 4035 07/30/2015 498.00 PD

          Total 100-45-4511-000 498.00 

100-51-5111-310 GENERAL FUND - VILLAGE BOARD - VILLAGE BOARD - VILLAGE BOARD: SUP & EXPENSE
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA SUBWAY-BOARD RETREAT 07252015 07/25/2015 38.00 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA COPPS-BOARD RETREAT 07252015 07/25/2015 26.53 PD

64.53   *

          Total 100-51-5111-310 64.53 

100-51-5130-210 GENERAL FUND - VILLAGE BOARD - LEGAL - LEGAL: GEN. ADVICE & COUNSEL
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA STAFFORD-SHACKELTON PARK 07252015 07/25/2015 1,128.00 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA STAFFORD-BLACKHAWK LEASE 07252015 07/25/2015 6,595.80 PD

7,723.80   *

          Total 100-51-5130-210 7,723.80 

100-51-5130-211 GENERAL FUND - VILLAGE BOARD - LEGAL - LEGAL: ORDINANCE PROSECUTIONS
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA STAFFORD-ORD. ENFORCEMEN 07252015 07/25/2015 1,856.88 PD

          Total 100-51-5130-211 1,856.88 

100-51-5141-380 GENERAL FUND - VILLAGE BOARD - ADMINISTRATION - ADMIN: STAFF SUNSHINE FUND
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA COPPS-SUNSHINE FUND SODA 07252015 07/25/2015 45.00 PD

          Total 100-51-5141-380 45.00 

100-51-5142-310 GENERAL FUND - VILLAGE BOARD - CLERK - CLERK: SUP & EXPENSES
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA VERIZON-ADMIN 07252015 07/25/2015 3.88 PD



PD = Fully Paid Invoice     PR = Partially Paid Invoice  

 
VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS    Payment Approval Report by GL No - Dept Heads Page:     2 

Paid / Unpaid Invoices  07/31/2015 - 07/31/2015 Aug 14, 2015  03:23pm 
 

GL Acct No Vendor Vendor Name Description Invoice No Inv Date Amount

10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA GORDON FLESCH-ADMIN COPIE 07252015 07/25/2015 109.92 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA CAPITAL NEWSPAPERS-LIQUOR 07252015 07/25/2015 131.44 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA OFFICE DEPOT-ORANGE CARDS 07252015 07/25/2015 15.99 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA OFFICE DEPOT-COLORED PAPE 07252015 07/25/2015 113.88 PD

375.11   *

          Total 100-51-5142-310 375.11 

100-51-5145-210 GENERAL FUND - VILLAGE BOARD - DATA PROCESSING - D.P.: CONTRACTUAL SERVICES
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA INFORMATION TECH PROS-IT SU 07252015 07/25/2015 448.50 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA GOOGLE APPS-EMAIL SERVICE 07252015 07/25/2015 170.00 PD

618.50   *

          Total 100-51-5145-210 618.50 

100-51-5145-340 GENERAL FUND - VILLAGE BOARD - DATA PROCESSING - D.P.: OPERATIONS EXPENSE
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA CHARTER-TV & INTERNET 07252015 07/25/2015 216.69 PD

          Total 100-51-5145-340 216.69 

100-51-5160-222 GENERAL FUND - VILLAGE BOARD - BUILDINGS & PLANT - BLDGS & PLANT: TELEPHONE
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA AT&T-MONTHLY PHONE BILL 07252015 07/25/2015 393.60 PD

          Total VILLAGE BOARD 11,294.11 

          Total 100-51-5160-222 393.60 

100-52-5210-322 GENERAL FUND - PUBLIC SERVICES - POLICE DEPARTMENT - POLICE: TRAINING EXPENSES
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA KALAHARI-SGT AG CONFERENC 07252015 07/25/2015 81.00 PD

          Total 100-52-5210-322 81.00 

100-52-5210-340 GENERAL FUND - PUBLIC SERVICES - POLICE DEPARTMENT - POLICE: OPERATING EXPENSE
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA VERIZON-POLICE 07252015 07/25/2015 104.99 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA BUDGET BICYCLE-PEDALS ON C 07252015 07/25/2015 17.00 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA MSN RECHARGE-BATTERY STIN 07252015 07/25/2015 24.24 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA LARK-REPLACE MARTENS UNIF 07252015 07/25/2015 767.75 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA JG UNIFORMS-REPLACE VEST-P 07252015 07/25/2015 129.81 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA EMBLEM ENTERPRISE-SHPD PA 07252015 07/25/2015 318.64 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA WHOLE FOODS-STAFF MEETING 07252015 07/25/2015 27.41 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA COPPS-STAFF MEETING 07252015 07/25/2015 15.81 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA GORDON FLESCH-PD COPIER 07252015 07/25/2015 32.17 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA BUDGET SIGNS-NO PARKING 07252015 07/25/2015 240.50 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA COPPS-PD STAFF MEETING 07252015 07/25/2015 19.87 PD

1,698.19  *



PD = Fully Paid Invoice     PR = Partially Paid Invoice  

 
VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS    Payment Approval Report by GL No - Dept Heads Page:     3 

Paid / Unpaid Invoices  07/31/2015 - 07/31/2015 Aug 14, 2015  03:23pm 
 

GL Acct No Vendor Vendor Name Description Invoice No Inv Date Amount

          Total 100-52-5210-340 1,698.19 

100-52-5210-341 GENERAL FUND - PUBLIC SERVICES - POLICE DEPARTMENT - POLICE: UNIFORM EXPENSE
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA LARK-OFFICER UNIFORMS 07252015 07/25/2015 851.64 PD

          Total 100-52-5210-341 851.64 

100-52-5210-350 GENERAL FUND - PUBLIC SERVICES - POLICE DEPARTMENT - POLICE: VEHICLE REPAIR & MAINT
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA KAYSER FORD-ALTERNATOR 20 07252015 07/25/2015 546.40 PD

          Total PUBLIC SERVICES 3,177.23 

          Total 100-52-5210-350 546.40 

100-53-5300-340 GENERAL FUND - PUBLIC WORKS - PUBLIC WORKS - AIDABLE WORK: OPERATING EXP.
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA FASTENAL-NUTS, BOLTS, WASH 07252015 07/25/2015 68.54 PD

          Total 100-53-5300-340 68.54 

100-53-5320-350 GENERAL FUND - PUBLIC WORKS - MUNICIPAL GARAGE - GARAGE: VEHICLE REPAIR & MAINT
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA MIDDLETON FORD-HEATER FAN 07252015 07/25/2015 24.42 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA POMPS TIRE-TIRE REPAIR 07252015 07/25/2015 34.00 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA FARM & FLEET-HAMMER/SAW B 07252015 07/25/2015 218.56 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA ARNESONS AUTO-FUEL PUMP O 07252015 07/25/2015 673.73 PD

950.71   *

          Total 100-53-5320-350 950.71 

100-53-5365-340 GENERAL FUND - PUBLIC WORKS - LEAF COLLECTION - RECYCLING/YARDWASTE: SUP EXP
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA WI ARBOR ASSOC-DPW SAFETY 07252015 07/25/2015 180.00 PD

          Total PUBLIC WORKS 1,199.25 

          Total 100-53-5365-340 180.00 

100-55-5500-340 GENERAL FUND - NON-AIDABLE EXPENSES - NON-AIDABLE EXPENSES - NON-AIDABLE: OPERATING EXPENSE
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA BUDGET SIGNS-NO PARKING 07252015 07/25/2015 240.50 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA HILL ELECTRIC-BALASTS & FIXT 07252015 07/25/2015 485.08 PD

725.58   *

          Total 100-55-5500-340 725.58 



PD = Fully Paid Invoice     PR = Partially Paid Invoice  

 
VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS    Payment Approval Report by GL No - Dept Heads Page:     4 

Paid / Unpaid Invoices  07/31/2015 - 07/31/2015 Aug 14, 2015  03:23pm 
 

GL Acct No Vendor Vendor Name Description Invoice No Inv Date Amount

100-55-5520-340 GENERAL FUND - NON-AIDABLE EXPENSES - PARKS - PARKS:OPERATING EXPENSE
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA VERIZON-FORESTER 07252015 07/25/2015 43.17 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA AM LEONARD-PRUNING TOOLS& 07252015 07/25/2015 181.97 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA BRAND NEW CHEF-TOOL SHARP 07252015 07/25/2015 45.50 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA WI ARBOR ASSOC-FORESTER S 07252015 07/25/2015 80.00 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA BRAND NEW CHEF-TOOL SHARP 07252015 07/25/2015 10.00 PD

360.64   *

          Total 100-55-5520-340 360.64 

100-55-5520-342 GENERAL FUND - NON-AIDABLE EXPENSES - PARKS - VILLAGE TREE SALES COSTS
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA JOHNSON'S-PRIVATE TREE PLA 07252015 07/25/2015 1,266.00 PD

          Total 100-55-5520-342 1,266.00 

100-55-5523-343 GENERAL FUND - NON-AIDABLE EXPENSES - HORTICULTURIST - HORTICULTURE: REFORESTATION
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA JOHNSON'S-VILLAGE TREE PLA 07252015 07/25/2015 99.00 PD

          Total 100-55-5523-343 99.00 

100-55-5532-340 GENERAL FUND - NON-AIDABLE EXPENSES - LAND RECREATION PROGRAM - LAND RECREATION: OPERATING EX
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA BRUCE COMPANY-LAND REC UM 07252015 07/25/2015 640.00 PD

          Total 100-55-5532-340 640.00 

100-55-5533-340 GENERAL FUND - NON-AIDABLE EXPENSES - TENNIS PROGRAM - TENNIS: OPERATING EXPENSES
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA HAVANA BOBS-TENNIS TSHIRTS 07252015 07/25/2015 543.75 PD

          Total NON-AIDABLE EXPENSES 3,634.97 

          Total 100-55-5533-340 543.75 

          Total GENERAL FUND 50,255.57 

210-51-5160-222 POOL SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - LEGAL - BUILDINGS & PLANT - BLDG/PLANT: TELEPHONE
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA AT&T-UVERSE AT POOL 07252015 07/25/2015 45.00 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA MAILCHIMP-POOL EMAIL SYSTE 07252015 07/25/2015 25.00 PD

70.00  *

          Total 210-51-5160-222 70.00 

210-51-5160-350 POOL SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - LEGAL - BUILDINGS & PLANT - BLDG/PLANT: REPAIR/MAINT EXP.
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA REC SUPPLY CO-BASKETBALL H 07252015 07/25/2015 270.60 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA DORN TRUE VALUE-SHOWER H 07252015 07/25/2015 69.57 PD



PD = Fully Paid Invoice     PR = Partially Paid Invoice  

 
VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS    Payment Approval Report by GL No - Dept Heads Page:     5 

Paid / Unpaid Invoices  07/31/2015 - 07/31/2015 Aug 14, 2015  03:23pm 
 

GL Acct No Vendor Vendor Name Description Invoice No Inv Date Amount

10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA DORN TRUE VALUE-SHOWER H 07252015 07/25/2015 57.97 PD
398.14   *

          Total LEGAL 468.14 

          Total 210-51-5160-350 398.14 

210-55-5542-310 POOL SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - POOL OPERATIONS - POOL OPERATIONS - POOL STAFF: OFC SPLY & EXP
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA OFFICE DEPOT-POSTER BOARD 07252015 07/25/2015 61.15 PD

          Total 210-55-5542-310 61.15 

210-55-5542-315 POOL SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - POOL OPERATIONS - POOL OPERATIONS - POOL STAFF: APPRECIATION
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA ROCKY ROCOCO-LAST DAY LES 07252015 07/25/2015 275.27 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA CAPITAL COFFEE-WATER/COFF 07252015 07/25/2015 135.80 PD

411.07   *

          Total 210-55-5542-315 411.07 

210-55-5542-340 POOL SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - POOL OPERATIONS - POOL OPERATIONS - POOL: OPERATING SUPLY & EXP.
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA BAYTOWEL-TOWELS & MOPS 07252015 07/25/2015 157.02 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA NASSCO-LOCKER ROOM CLEAN 07252015 07/25/2015 705.56 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA EXXONMOBIL-GAS FOR BLOWE 07252015 07/25/2015 8.79 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA TARGET-NETS FOR BASKETBAL 07252015 07/25/2015 18.97 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA HELLENBRAND WATER-SOFTNE 07252015 07/25/2015 84.15 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA RADIOSHACK-AUDIO EQUIP CON 07252015 07/25/2015 6.07 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA ECONOPRINT-GUEST PASSES 07252015 07/25/2015 41.80 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA SHOPKEEP-CHECKER REGISTE 07252015 07/25/2015 49.00 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA WALGREENS-STAFF PICTURES 07252015 07/25/2015 10.76 PD

1,082.12  *

          Total 210-55-5542-340 1,082.12 

210-55-5542-343 POOL SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - POOL OPERATIONS - POOL OPERATIONS - CONCESSIONS EXPENSE
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA COPPS-CONC PRODUCT 07252015 07/25/2015 24.07 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA BAGELS FOREVER-BAGELS FOR 07252015 07/25/2015 14.15 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA SHOPKEEP-CONCESSIONS REG 07252015 07/25/2015 49.00 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA COPPS-WATER BALLET SHOW S 07252015 07/25/2015 28.49 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA COPPS-CONC PRODUCT 07252015 07/25/2015 45.40 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA BAGELS FOREVER-BAGELS FOR 07252015 07/25/2015 18.40 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA ENGELHART DAIRY-ICE CREAM 07252015 07/25/2015 1,492.48 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA COPPS-CONC PRODUCT 07252015 07/25/2015 34.67 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA BAGELS FOREVER-BAGELS FOR 07252015 07/25/2015 12.10 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA BAGELS FOREVER-BAGELS FOR 07252015 07/25/2015 14.15 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA COPPS-CONC PRODUCT 07252015 07/25/2015 61.39 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA BAGELS FOREVER-BAGELS FOR 07252015 07/25/2015 5.90 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA BAGELS FOREVER-BAGELS FOR 07252015 07/25/2015 11.95 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA BAGELS FOREVER-BAGELS FOR 07252015 07/25/2015 12.35 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA BAGELS FOREVER-BAGELS FOR 07252015 07/25/2015 12.05 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA BAGELS FOREVER-BAGELS FOR 07252015 07/25/2015 17.40 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA COPPS-CONCESSION PRODUCT 07252015 07/25/2015 40.81 PD



PD = Fully Paid Invoice     PR = Partially Paid Invoice  

 
VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS    Payment Approval Report by GL No - Dept Heads Page:     6 

Paid / Unpaid Invoices  07/31/2015 - 07/31/2015 Aug 14, 2015  03:23pm 
 

GL Acct No Vendor Vendor Name Description Invoice No Inv Date Amount

10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA BAGELS FOREVER-BAGELS FOR 07252015 07/25/2015 12.15 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA BAGELS FOREVER-BAGELS FOR 07252015 07/25/2015 14.00 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA BAGELS FOREVER-BAGELS FOR 07252015 07/25/2015 12.10 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA COPPS-CONC PRODUCT 07252015 07/25/2015 53.06 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA BADGER POPCORN-CONCESSIO 07252015 07/25/2015 474.25 PD

2,460.32   *

          Total 210-55-5542-343 2,460.32 

210-55-5542-344 POOL SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - POOL OPERATIONS - POOL OPERATIONS - SPECIAL EVENTS EXPENSE
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA FEDEX-LESSON REPORT CARDS 07252015 07/25/2015 24.69 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA TARGET-FLOATS FOR FLOAT NI 07252015 07/25/2015 101.24 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA COPPS-WATER BALLET SHOW 07252015 07/25/2015 42.20 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA ROCKY ROCOCO PIZZA-2ND SE 07252015 07/25/2015 219.93 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA UPS STORE-SWIM LESSON EVA 07252015 07/25/2015 50.64 PD

438.70   *

          Total 210-55-5542-344 438.70 

210-55-5542-346 POOL SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - POOL OPERATIONS - POOL OPERATIONS - SWIM/DIVE/BALLET EXPENSES
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA ROCKY ROCOCO PIZZA-WATER 07252015 07/25/2015 390.22 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA WALGREENS-WATER BALLET C 07252015 07/25/2015 7.16 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA DOLLARTREE-WATER BALLET S 07252015 07/25/2015 23.21 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA TARGET-WATER BALLET COSTU 07252015 07/25/2015 128.83 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA UPS STORE-HEAT SHEET SWIM 07252015 07/25/2015 64.08 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA JCPENNY-WATER BALLET SHOW 07252015 07/25/2015 82.25 - PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA UPS STORE-WATER BALLET SH 07252015 07/25/2015 60.88 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA POINT CINEMA-TEAM MOVIE (CO 07252015 07/25/2015 7.25 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA OLD NAVY-WATER BALLET COS 07252015 07/25/2015 13.65 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA OFFICE DEPOT-TONER FOR SW 07252015 07/25/2015 240.51 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA POINT CINEMA-TEAM MOVIE (CO 07252015 07/25/2015 72.50 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA COPPS-WATER BALLET CAKE 07252015 07/25/2015 49.00 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA UPS STORE-SWIM TEAM HEAT S 07252015 07/25/2015 195.12 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA WALGREENS-WATER BALLET C 07252015 07/25/2015 166.44 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA NOAH'S ARK-ENTRANCE FEE 07252015 07/25/2015 2,461.00 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA UPS STORE-SWIM MEET HEAT S 07252015 07/25/2015 154.62 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA PASQUALS-CHIPS FOR SWIM/DI 07252015 07/25/2015 29.38 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA PARTY CITY-WATER BALLET SH 07252015 07/25/2015 47.32 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA JCPENNY-WATER BALLET SHOW 07252015 07/25/2015 82.25 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA JOANN FABRIC-WATER BALLET 07252015 07/25/2015 49.70 PD

1000752 HIGH POINT SWIM CLUB 2015 ALL CITY SWIM REGISTRAT 4034 07/24/2015 3,225.00 PD
7,385.87   *

          Total POOL OPERATIONS 11,839.23 

          Total 210-55-5542-346 7,385.87 

          Total POOL SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 12,307.37 

220-55-5546-340 WATERFRONT:SPECIAL REV FUND - WATERFRONT OPERATIONS - WATERFRONT OPERATIONS - PARK: OPERATIN
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA BUCKY'S PORTABLE-MARINA TO 07252015 07/25/2015 100.00 PD



PD = Fully Paid Invoice     PR = Partially Paid Invoice  

 
VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS    Payment Approval Report by GL No - Dept Heads Page:     7 

Paid / Unpaid Invoices  07/31/2015 - 07/31/2015 Aug 14, 2015  03:23pm 
 

GL Acct No Vendor Vendor Name Description Invoice No Inv Date Amount

          Total WATERFRONT OPERATIONS 100.00 

          Total 220-55-5546-340 100.00 

          Total WATERFRONT:SPECIAL REV FUND 100.00 

400-53-5344-867 CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND - MUNICIPAL GARAGE - 400-53-5344 - 2014 ROAD:WELLESLEY, DARTMOUTH
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA JOHNSON'S-ROAD IMPROVEME 07252015 07/25/2015 201.00 PD

          Total MUNICIPAL GARAGE 201.00 

          Total 400-53-5344-867 201.00 

          Total CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 201.00 

450-51-5141-120 450 - 450-51 - 450-51-5141 - PLANNING, LEGAL & ADMINISTRATN
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA STAFFORD-LENHART PROJECT 07252015 07/25/2015 2,528.40 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA STAFFORD-AT&T PLAZA REDEV 07252015 07/25/2015 1,482.30 PD

4,010.70  *

          Total 450-51 4,010.70 

          Total 450-51-5141-120 4,010.70 

          Total 450 4,010.70 

600-53-0630-340 WATER DEPARTMENT FUND - WATER: WAGES AND BENEFITS - CHEMICALS - SUPPLIES AND EXPENSE
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA ITRON-HARDWARE/SOFTWARE 07252015 07/25/2015 388.45 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA VERIZON-DPW 07252015 07/25/2015 49.72 PD

438.17   *

          Total WATER: WAGES AND BENEFITS 438.17 

          Total 600-53-0630-340 438.17 



PD = Fully Paid Invoice     PR = Partially Paid Invoice  

 
VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS    Payment Approval Report by GL No - Dept Heads Page:     8 

Paid / Unpaid Invoices  07/31/2015 - 07/31/2015 Aug 14, 2015  03:23pm 
 

GL Acct No Vendor Vendor Name Description Invoice No Inv Date Amount

          Total WATER DEPARTMENT FUND 438.17 

          Grand Total: 67,312.81 



PD = Fully Paid Invoice     PR = Partially Paid Invoice  

 
VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS    Payment Approval Report by GL No - Dept Heads Page:     1 

Paid / Unpaid Invoices  08/17/2015 - 08/17/2015 Aug 14, 2015  03:14pm 
 

GL Acct No Vendor Vendor Name Description Invoice No Inv Date Amount

100-211541 GENERAL FUND - ICMA PAYABLE
9122 ICMA RETIREMENT TRUST 457 INC. PAYROLL CONTR. 08132015 08/13/2015 150.00 PD

100-211543 GENERAL FUND - WI DEFERRED PAYABLE
7714 GREAT WEST PAYROLL CONTRIBUTIONS 08142015 08/13/2015 1,950.00 PD

100-211545 GENERAL FUND - FED/FICA/MED TAX PAYABLE
6210 FEDERAL WITHHOLDING EFTPS FEDERAL WITHHOLDING 08052015 08/15/2015 20,762.28 PD

100-211549 GENERAL FUND - SWT PAYABLE
23387 WI DEPT OF REVENUE (EMP W/H) STATE WITHHOLDING TAX 08032015 08/03/2015 10.00 PD

100-211551 GENERAL FUND - RETIREMENT PAYABLE
23370 WI DEPT OF EMPLOYE TRUST FUND WI  RETIREMENT PAYM. 08082015 08/07/2015 19,047.78 PD

100-45-4511-000 GENERAL FUND - FINES, FORFEITS, & PENALTIES - 100-45-4511 - COURT FINES
4038 DANE CO TREASURER SHARED COURT FINES-JULY 8042015 08/04/2015 453.45 

23350 WI DEPT ADMINISTRATION: COURT SHARED COURT FINES-JULY 8042015 08/04/2015 469.04 
922.49   *

          Total 100-45-4511-000 922.49 

100-46-4673-300 GENERAL FUND - PUBLIC CHARGES FOR SERVICES - 100-46-4673 - RECREATION: TENNIS
1000750 COURT, KRISTIN REFUND TENNIS FEES 4036 08/06/2015 220.00 PD

          Total 100-46-4673-300 220.00 

100-51-5130-210 GENERAL FUND - VILLAGE BOARD - LEGAL - LEGAL: GEN. ADVICE & COUNSEL
1000577 VONBRIESEN & ROPER S.C. EMPLOYMENT MATTERS 10040 07/28/2015 279.50 

          Total 100-51-5130-210 279.50 

100-51-5142-310 GENERAL FUND - VILLAGE BOARD - CLERK - CLERK: SUP & EXPENSES
13041 MDS/SWAP EVLELOPES, CALCULATOR A3269778950 07/04/2015 31.63 
13041 MDS/SWAP ENVELOPES, FOLDERS, DYMO TA3271967902 07/17/2015 44.72 
23375 WI DEPT OF JUSTICE BACK GROUND CKS: ALCOHOL 08012015 08/03/2015 49.00 

125.35   *

          Total 100-51-5142-310 125.35 

100-51-5151-300 GENERAL FUND - VILLAGE BOARD - FINANCE - BOND ISSUE EXPENSES
999610 ASSOCIATED TRUST COMPANY ANNUAL FEE: BUILD AMERICA 2652 08/11/2015 463.00 

          Total 100-51-5151-300 463.00 

100-51-5160-220 GENERAL FUND - VILLAGE BOARD - BUILDINGS & PLANT - BLDGS & PLANT: GAS & ELECTRIC
13040 MADISON GAS & ELECTRIC 810 & 1008 SHOREWOOD BLVD 081315 08/03/2015 3,834.18 



PD = Fully Paid Invoice     PR = Partially Paid Invoice  

 
VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS    Payment Approval Report by GL No - Dept Heads Page:     2 

Paid / Unpaid Invoices  08/17/2015 - 08/17/2015 Aug 14, 2015  03:14pm 
 

GL Acct No Vendor Vendor Name Description Invoice No Inv Date Amount

          Total 100-51-5160-220 3,834.18 

100-51-5160-222 GENERAL FUND - VILLAGE BOARD - BUILDINGS & PLANT - BLDGS & PLANT: TELEPHONE
3220 CENTURY LINK CENTREX LINES- JULY 1347601102 07/31/2015 7.59 

          Total 100-51-5160-222 7.59 

100-51-5160-530 GENERAL FUND - VILLAGE BOARD - BUILDINGS & PLANT - BLDGS & PLANT: RENTAL EXPENSE
4207 DEGEN AND ASSOCIATES LLC RENT - 5133 UNIVERSITY AVE 8012015 08/01/2015 2,052.09 

13040 MADISON GAS & ELECTRIC 5133 UNIVERSITY - 102 081315 08/03/2015 28.82 
2,080.91  *

          Total VILLAGE BOARD 6,790.53 

          Total 100-51-5160-530 2,080.91 

100-52-5210-340 GENERAL FUND - PUBLIC SERVICES - POLICE DEPARTMENT - POLICE: OPERATING EXPENSE
9155 ID-ACCESS ID CARD FOR PT OFFICER-OLSO 1175 07/18/2015 10.00 

13041 MDS/SWAP POLICE DEPT SUPPLIES A3271902388 07/16/2015 36.09 
16034 BOUND TREE MEDICAL LLC LATEX GLOVES 81870866 08/06/2015 38.08 

84.17   *

          Total 100-52-5210-340 84.17 

100-52-5210-370 GENERAL FUND - PUBLIC SERVICES - POLICE DEPARTMENT - POLICE: FUEL & OIL
19311 SHELL OIL CO:POLICE ACCT FUEL  FOR SQUADS 79030045508 08/06/2015 780.64 
19311 SHELL OIL CO:POLICE ACCT TAX CREDIT 79030045508 08/06/2015 54.80 -

725.84   *

          Total 100-52-5210-370 725.84 

100-52-5220-210 GENERAL FUND - PUBLIC SERVICES - FIRE DEPARTMENT - FIRE: CONTRACTUAL EXPENSE
13082 MADISON CITY TREASURER 2ND 1/2 2015 FIRE/EMS PROTEC 235-2 08/04/2015 238,309.91 

          Total 100-52-5220-210 238,309.91 

100-52-5220-215 GENERAL FUND - PUBLIC SERVICES - FIRE DEPARTMENT - FIRE: 2% DUES TO MAD FIRE DEPT
13082 MADISON CITY TREASURER FIRE DUES DISTRIBUTION 2015 8032015 08/03/2015 17,913.23 
13082 MADISON CITY TREASURER FIRE DUES DISTRIBUTION 2014 8032015 08/03/2015 17,592.20 

35,505.43   *

          Total 100-52-5220-215 35,505.43 

100-52-5260-290 GENERAL FUND - PUBLIC SERVICES - EMERGENCY COMMUNICATION - DANE COUNTY RADIO CONTRACT
4036 DANE CO TREASURER DANE COM- JAN-JUNE 2015 27042 07/20/2015 1,615.00 



PD = Fully Paid Invoice     PR = Partially Paid Invoice  

 
VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS    Payment Approval Report by GL No - Dept Heads Page:     3 

Paid / Unpaid Invoices  08/17/2015 - 08/17/2015 Aug 14, 2015  03:14pm 
 

GL Acct No Vendor Vendor Name Description Invoice No Inv Date Amount

          Total PUBLIC SERVICES 276,240.35 

          Total 100-52-5260-290 1,615.00 

100-53-5300-340 GENERAL FUND - PUBLIC WORKS - PUBLIC WORKS - AIDABLE WORK: OPERATING EXP.
13040 MADISON GAS & ELECTRIC 4502 OLD MIDDLETON ROAD 081315 08/03/2015 27.96 

          Total 100-53-5300-340 27.96 

100-53-5320-370 GENERAL FUND - PUBLIC WORKS - MUNICIPAL GARAGE - GARAGE: FUEL & OIL
19841 STOP-N-GO DPW GAS DPW - GAS 7312015 07/31/2015 876.92 

          Total 100-53-5320-370 876.92 

100-53-5342-220 GENERAL FUND - PUBLIC WORKS - STREET LIGHTING - STREET LIGHTING: POWER
13040 MADISON GAS & ELECTRIC 900 SHOREWOOD BLVD 081315 08/03/2015 143.24 
13040 MADISON GAS & ELECTRIC STREET LIGHTING (1008 SHORE 081315 08/03/2015 1,462.19 

1,605.43   *

          Total 100-53-5342-220 1,605.43 

100-53-5352-300 GENERAL FUND - PUBLIC WORKS - 100-53-5352 - BUS SERVICE 
13043 MADISON METRO TRANSIT 3RD QTR PARA TRANSIT 50900227 07/23/2015 2,500.00 

          Total 100-53-5352-300 2,500.00 

100-53-5363-290 GENERAL FUND - PUBLIC WORKS - METRO LANDFILL DISTRICT - METRO LANDFILL EXPENSE
13377 MIDDLETON CITY TREASURER 2ND HALF LANDFILL EXPENSE 2 112-2015 07/24/2015 2,685.00 

          Total 100-53-5363-290 2,685.00 

100-53-5365-370 GENERAL FUND - PUBLIC WORKS - LEAF COLLECTION - RECYCLING/YARDWASTE:FUEL & OIL
19845 STOP-N-GO DPW DIESEL DPW - DIESEL 7312015 07/31/2015 704.05 

          Total PUBLIC WORKS 8,399.36 

          Total 100-53-5365-370 704.05 

100-55-5500-340 GENERAL FUND - NON-AIDABLE EXPENSES - NON-AIDABLE EXPENSES - NON-AIDABLE: OPERATING EXPENSE
1106 ACE HILLDALE  (DPW) PAINT GRILLS 27892 07/23/2015 23.96 



PD = Fully Paid Invoice     PR = Partially Paid Invoice  

 
VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS    Payment Approval Report by GL No - Dept Heads Page:     4 

Paid / Unpaid Invoices  08/17/2015 - 08/17/2015 Aug 14, 2015  03:14pm 
 

GL Acct No Vendor Vendor Name Description Invoice No Inv Date Amount

13040 MADISON GAS & ELECTRIC 3302 BLACKH,3100 HARV,1004 S 081315 08/03/2015 106.55 
13041 MDS/SWAP DPW SOAP DISPENSER A9795201125 07/20/2015 28.54 
13041 MDS/SWAP DPW SOAP FOR DISPENSERS RA161042400 07/23/2015 71.40 
13085 MADISON TREASURER, CITY OF WATER & FIRE- 810 SW BLVD 7808186 07/21/2015 15.07 
13085 MADISON TREASURER, CITY OF 810 SW BLVD-FIRE PROTECTION 7814666 07/22/2015 15.09 
13102 MAXIMUM MECHANICAL INC ADD FAN TO BOARD ROOM AC U 6038 07/21/2015 307.50 
13102 MAXIMUM MECHANICAL INC CLEAN AC @ VH & NEW FAN 6053 07/28/2015 2,169.06 

1000751 CLEAR VISION CLEANING LLC WINDOW CLEANING AT VILLAGE 3743 08/03/2015 175.00 
2,912.17   *

          Total 100-55-5500-340 2,912.17 

100-55-5520-320 GENERAL FUND - NON-AIDABLE EXPENSES - PARKS - PARKS:PROJECTS
7625 GOOD OAK LLC Invasive Spec CONTROL: POST F INV-15-227 07/17/2015 175.50 

          Total 100-55-5520-320 175.50 

100-55-5532-340 GENERAL FUND - NON-AIDABLE EXPENSES - LAND RECREATION PROGRAM - LAND RECREATION: OPERATING EX
1000689 WICKMAN, PETER & JENNIFER REIMBURSE LAND REC EXPENS 08032015 08/03/2015 473.30 

          Total 100-55-5532-340 473.30 

100-55-5533-340 GENERAL FUND - NON-AIDABLE EXPENSES - TENNIS PROGRAM - TENNIS: OPERATING EXPENSES
999817 TAYLOR, LESLIE LOMBARDINOS 8042015 08/04/2015 454.17 

          Total 100-55-5533-340 454.17 

100-55-5535-340 GENERAL FUND - NON-AIDABLE EXPENSES - BASKETBALL PROGRAM - BASKETBALL: OPERATING EXPENSE
999508 BENFORADO, DAVID REIMBURSE BASKETBALL EXPE 7242015 07/24/2015 39.28 

          Total NON-AIDABLE EXPENSES 4,054.42 

          Total 100-55-5535-340 39.28 

          Total GENERAL FUND 338,547.21 

200-51-5160-220 SEWER DIVISION FUND - CLERK - BUILDINGS & PLANT - BLDG/PLANT: GAS & ELECTRIC
13040 MADISON GAS & ELECTRIC 3336 LAKE MENDOTA DRIVE 081315 08/03/2015 95.97 

          Total CLERK 95.97 



PD = Fully Paid Invoice     PR = Partially Paid Invoice  

 
VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS    Payment Approval Report by GL No - Dept Heads Page:     5 

Paid / Unpaid Invoices  08/17/2015 - 08/17/2015 Aug 14, 2015  03:14pm 
 

GL Acct No Vendor Vendor Name Description Invoice No Inv Date Amount

          Total 200-51-5160-220 95.97 

200-53-5361-223 SEWER DIVISION FUND - PUBLIC WORKS - GENERAL OPERATIONS - SEWER TREATMENT EXPENSE
13046 MADISON METRO SEWERAGE DIST 2ND QTR SEWER IN000011893 07/15/2015 32,586.31 

          Total PUBLIC WORKS 32,586.31 

          Total 200-53-5361-223 32,586.31 

          Total SEWER DIVISION FUND 32,682.28 

210-46-4670-000 POOL SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - PUBLIC CHARGES FOR SERVICES - 210-46-4670 - MEMBERSHIP FEES
1000750 COURT, KRISTIN REFUND POOL MEMBERSHIP 4037 08/06/2015 674.00 PD

          Total 210-46-4670-000 674.00 

210-46-4670-100 POOL SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - PUBLIC CHARGES FOR SERVICES - 210-46-4670 - SWIM/DIVE/BALLET TEAM REG 
1000749 SMITH, PHYLLIS REFUND SWIM TEAM-SHAY ROS 8032015 08/03/2015 55.00 
1000750 COURT, KRISTIN REFUND SWIM TEAM 4036 08/06/2015 55.00 PD
1000750 COURT, KRISTIN REFUND SWIM TEAM 4037 08/06/2015 55.00 PD

165.00  *

          Total 210-46-4670-100 165.00 

210-51-5160-220 POOL SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - LEGAL - BUILDINGS & PLANT - BLDG/PLANT: GAS & ELECTRIC
13040 MADISON GAS & ELECTRIC 901 SWARTHMORE- CONCESSIO 081315 08/03/2015 429.99 
13040 MADISON GAS & ELECTRIC 901 SWARTHMORE 081315 08/03/2015 4,952.68 

5,382.67   *

          Total 210-51-5160-220 5,382.67 

210-51-5160-350 POOL SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - LEGAL - BUILDINGS & PLANT - BLDG/PLANT: REPAIR/MAINT EXP.
1109 ACE HILLDALE      (POOL) DPW - MISC. HARDWARE 27611 05/22/2015 1.08 

          Total LEGAL 5,383.75 

          Total 210-51-5160-350 1.08 

210-55-5542-339 POOL SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - POOL OPERATIONS - POOL OPERATIONS - POOL: CHEMICALS
13384 MIDWEST POOL SUPPLY COMPANY ACID 57509 07/02/2015 191.50 
13384 MIDWEST POOL SUPPLY COMPANY CHLORINE 57510 07/06/2015 599.00 



PD = Fully Paid Invoice     PR = Partially Paid Invoice  

 
VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS    Payment Approval Report by GL No - Dept Heads Page:     6 

Paid / Unpaid Invoices  08/17/2015 - 08/17/2015 Aug 14, 2015  03:14pm 
 

GL Acct No Vendor Vendor Name Description Invoice No Inv Date Amount

13384 MIDWEST POOL SUPPLY COMPANY CHLORINE 57761 07/13/2015 684.00 
13384 MIDWEST POOL SUPPLY COMPANY CHLORINE 57929 07/20/2015 684.00 

2,158.50   *

          Total 210-55-5542-339 2,158.50 

210-55-5542-340 POOL SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - POOL OPERATIONS - POOL OPERATIONS - POOL: OPERATING SUPLY & EXP.
1109 ACE HILLDALE      (POOL) HARDWARE- INSECT REPELLAN 27990 07/14/2015 27.84 

          Total 210-55-5542-340 27.84 

210-55-5542-343 POOL SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - POOL OPERATIONS - POOL OPERATIONS - CONCESSIONS EXPENSE
8620 HOLIDAY WHOLESALE INC CONCESSION SUPPLIES 7473601 08/05/2015 45.15 
8621 HOLIDAY WHOLESALE INC:POOL CONCESS. FOOD 7446657 07/15/2015 390.65 
8621 HOLIDAY WHOLESALE INC:POOL CONCESS. FOOD 7456486 07/22/2015 267.35 
8621 HOLIDAY WHOLESALE INC:POOL CONCESS. SUPPLIES 7465432 07/29/2015 308.74 

1,011.89  *

          Total 210-55-5542-343 1,011.89 

210-55-5542-344 POOL SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - POOL OPERATIONS - POOL OPERATIONS - SPECIAL EVENTS EXPENSE
8621 HOLIDAY WHOLESALE INC:POOL 2ND SESSION LESSON -LAST DA 7456486 07/22/2015 134.00 

          Total 210-55-5542-344 134.00 

210-55-5542-346 POOL SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - POOL OPERATIONS - POOL OPERATIONS - SWIM/DIVE/BALLET EXPENSES
1109 ACE HILLDALE      (POOL) DIVE BENCH-PAINTING PROJEC 27901 07/01/2015 25.48 
1109 ACE HILLDALE      (POOL) DIVE BENCH & BANNER SUPPLI 27958 07/09/2015 49.46 

74.94   *

          Total 210-55-5542-346 74.94 

210-55-5542-350 POOL SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - POOL OPERATIONS - POOL OPERATIONS - REPAIR/MAINT: SUPLY & EXPENSE
1109 ACE HILLDALE      (POOL) POOL HARDWARE SUPPLIES 27809 06/19/2015 17.97 
1109 ACE HILLDALE      (POOL) HARDWARE  27940 07/07/2015 .94 

18.91   *

          Total 210-55-5542-350 18.91 

210-55-5542-351 POOL SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - POOL OPERATIONS - POOL OPERATIONS - REPAIR/MAINT: POOL EQUIPMENT
1109 ACE HILLDALE      (POOL) BABY POOL PIPE REPAIR 27853 06/25/2015 19.37 

          Total POOL OPERATIONS 3,445.45 

          Total 210-55-5542-351 19.37 



PD = Fully Paid Invoice     PR = Partially Paid Invoice  

 
VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS    Payment Approval Report by GL No - Dept Heads Page:     7 

Paid / Unpaid Invoices  08/17/2015 - 08/17/2015 Aug 14, 2015  03:14pm 
 

GL Acct No Vendor Vendor Name Description Invoice No Inv Date Amount

          Total POOL SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 9,668.20 

220-51-5160-220 WATERFRONT:SPECIAL REV FUND - CLERK - BUILDINGS & PLANT - BLDG/PLANT: GAS & ELECTRIC
13040 MADISON GAS & ELECTRIC 3400 LMD/4898 LMD 081315 08/03/2015 78.21 

          Total CLERK 78.21 

          Total 220-51-5160-220 78.21 

          Total WATERFRONT:SPECIAL REV FUND 78.21 

400-53-5344-867 CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND - MUNICIPAL GARAGE - 400-53-5344 - 2014 ROAD:WELLESLEY, DARTMOUTH
20670 TOWN & COUNTRY ENGINEERING IN2014 ST.& UTIL.IMPROVEM. 15853 08/06/2015 354.00 

          Total 400-53-5344-867 354.00 

400-53-5344-868 CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND - MUNICIPAL GARAGE - 400-53-5344 - 2015 ROADS: RESURFACE, OAK WAY
16050 PAYNE AND DOLAN INC 2015 ST & UTILITY IMPROVEMEN 2 08/12/2015 363,630.57 
20670 TOWN & COUNTRY ENGINEERING IN2015 STREET IMPROVEMENTS 15854 08/06/2015 7,313.90 

370,944.47   *

          Total 400-53-5344-868 370,944.47 

400-53-5363-300 CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND - MUNICIPAL GARAGE - SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL - SEWER LINING
20670 TOWN & COUNTRY ENGINEERING IN2015 SANITARY SEWER 15855 08/06/2015 5,149.00 

          Total MUNICIPAL GARAGE 376,447.47 

          Total 400-53-5363-300 5,149.00 

400-59-5920-850 CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND - OTHER FINANCING USES - 400-59-5920 - DISCOUNT & DEBT ISSUE COSTS
1000263 ROBERT W BAIRD & CO GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND PF-284345 07/21/2015 27,000.00 

          Total OTHER FINANCING USES 27,000.00 

          Total 400-59-5920-850 27,000.00 



PD = Fully Paid Invoice     PR = Partially Paid Invoice  

 
VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS    Payment Approval Report by GL No - Dept Heads Page:     8 

Paid / Unpaid Invoices  08/17/2015 - 08/17/2015 Aug 14, 2015  03:14pm 
 

GL Acct No Vendor Vendor Name Description Invoice No Inv Date Amount

          Total CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 403,447.47 

500-53-5364-340 STORM WATER UTILITY FUND - 500-53 - 500-53-5364 - OPERATING SUPPLIES AND EXPENSE
7625 GOOD OAK LLC BCC RAINGARDEN PLANTINGS INV-15-226 07/17/2015 2,040.00 
7625 GOOD OAK LLC Invasive Spec CONTROL: STORM INV-15-246 07/28/2015 1,097.00 
7625 GOOD OAK LLC BCC WEED CONTROL-STORMW INV-15-273 08/11/2015 586.00 

3,723.00   *

          Total 500-53 3,723.00 

          Total 500-53-5364-340 3,723.00 

          Total STORM WATER UTILITY FUND 3,723.00 

600-53-0610-601 WATER DEPARTMENT FUND - WATER: WAGES AND BENEFITS - OPERATIONS - PURCHASED WATER
13085 MADISON TREASURER, CITY OF 810 SHOREWOOD BLVD-FLAT RA 7808181 07/22/2015 352.50 
13085 MADISON TREASURER, CITY OF PIT-LAKE MENDOTA DRIVE 7808182 07/21/2015 2,355.66 
13085 MADISON TREASURER, CITY OF PIT-SHOREWOOD BLVD AT TRA 7808183 07/21/2015 1,387.94 
13085 MADISON TREASURER, CITY OF PIT-UNIVERSITY BAY DRIVE-TRA 7808184 07/21/2015 22.15 
13085 MADISON TREASURER, CITY OF PIT-MAPLE TER-LOCUST 7808185 07/21/2015 11,881.36 

15,999.61   *

          Total 600-53-0610-601 15,999.61 

600-53-0620-220 WATER DEPARTMENT FUND - WATER: WAGES AND BENEFITS - 600-53-0620 - POWER FOR PUMPING
13040 MADISON GAS & ELECTRIC 3302 BLACKH/3561 TALLYHO 081315 08/03/2015 1,024.01 

          Total 600-53-0620-220 1,024.01 

600-53-0630-340 WATER DEPARTMENT FUND - WATER: WAGES AND BENEFITS - CHEMICALS - SUPPLIES AND EXPENSE
4005 D.R.S. LIMITED INC VALVE BOX TOP REPAIRS 35637 07/20/2015 103.50 

          Total 600-53-0630-340 103.50 

600-53-0682-210 WATER DEPARTMENT FUND - WATER: WAGES AND BENEFITS - MISC GENERAL EXPENSES - OUTSIDE SERVICES
19640 SOUTH CENTRAL CONTRACTING REPAIR WATER MAIN LEAK 1233 08/04/2015 3,762.00 
19640 SOUTH CENTRAL CONTRACTING UTILITY REPAIRS, IMPROVEMEN 1234 08/04/2015 52,540.00 

56,302.00  *

          Total 600-53-0682-210 56,302.00 

600-53-5601-604 WATER DEPARTMENT FUND - WATER: WAGES AND BENEFITS - PURCH'D WATER/FIRE PROTECTION - FIRE PROTE
13080 MADISON TREASURER, CITY OF 3RD QTR FIRE PROTECTION 1615 08/03/2015 6,600.00 



PD = Fully Paid Invoice     PR = Partially Paid Invoice  

 
VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS    Payment Approval Report by GL No - Dept Heads Page:     9 

Paid / Unpaid Invoices  08/17/2015 - 08/17/2015 Aug 14, 2015  03:14pm 
 

GL Acct No Vendor Vendor Name Description Invoice No Inv Date Amount

          Total WATER: WAGES AND BENEFITS 80,029.12 

          Total 600-53-5601-604 6,600.00 

          Total WATER DEPARTMENT FUND 80,029.12 

800-244310 TRUST & AGENCY FUND - DANE COUNTY  -  PROPERTY TAXES
4039 DANE CO TREASURER FORWARD OF BCC PP ON LEAS 1015 08/06/2015 46,095.05 PD

          Total TRUST & AGENCY FUND 46,095.05 

          Grand Total: 914,270.54 

































      Village of Shorewood Hills 
Special Meeting of the Board of Trustees 

Draft Minutes 
                                      Thursday, July 9, 2015  5:30 p.m. 

 
1. Call to Order  Village President Mark Sundquist called the meeting to order at 5:35 p.m.  
 
2. Roll Call  Members of the Board present were Mr. Sundquist and Trustees Mark Lederer, David 

Benforado, Fred Wade, John Imes, Anne Readel and Felice Borisy-Rudin. Also in attendance was  
Village Administrator Karl Frantz, Village Attorney Matt Dregne of Stafford Rosenbaum, Village 
Planners Gary Becker and Dan Lindstrom of Vierbicher and Village Clerk Cokie Albrecht. 
Seventeen visitors were in the audience.  

 
3. Statement of Public Notice  Karl Frantz confirmed the meeting had been properly posted and 

noticed.  
 
4. Working session with discussion and possible recommendations and actions regarding 

development/planning in the Village along the University Avenue corridor and specific 
properties, including existing and potential proposals for apartments and other mixed uses 
such as, but not limited to, the Pyare Square property, ATT Plaza area, and Marshall Court 
parcels. The Board may discuss and formulate policies and direction, and engage in present 
and future planning regarding proposed and future developments in the Village and its 
impacts. After discussion, the Trustees agreed that the Village’s Comprehensive Plan and 
Neighborhood Plans, as written, reflect the types of development they would like to see; the plans 
do not need to be amended at this time. The Board acknowledged that Shorewood Hills is a 
desirable location for redevelopment. As such, the Plan Commission and Trustees can be 
selective and exert significant control over future projects through current zoning laws and tax 
increment financing tools. There was consensus that new apartment buildings will be mixed use, 
ideally with local businesses—ones Village residents would be interested in patronizing—as the 
commercial tenants. Approved future developments will need to provide extensive public green 
space, stormwater controls, underground parking and some affordable housing units. They will be 
designed to provide connection to the Village, built of quality materials and be aesthetically 
pleasing. Preference would be given to family-oriented developments, particularly townhomes. 
The Trustees would welcome a condominium and/or senior housing project. They recognized that 
all development is influenced by underlying economics—what is financially feasible.  
The Trustees agreed a future discussion would center on the use of Village space.  

 
5. Adjourn  Meeting adjourned at 9:00 p.m.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Colleen Boyle Albrecht 
Village Clerk 
 

1 of 1 



1 of 5 

       Village of Shorewood Hills 
Board of Trustees Meeting  

Draft Minutes 
                                        Monday, July 20, 2015  7:00 p.m. 
 

1. Call to Order  Village President Mark Sundquist called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  
 
2. Roll Call  Members of the Board present were Mr. Sundquist and Trustees Fred Wade, John 

Imes, David Benforado, Mark Lederer and Anne Readel. Felice Borisy-Rudin was excused. Also 
in attendance were Village Administrator Karl Frantz, Department of Public Works Chief John 
Mitmoen, Police Chief Denny Pine, Detective-Sergeant Corey Denzer and Village Clerk Cokie 
Albrecht. Approximately 20 visitors were in the audience. 

 
3. Statement of Public Notice  Karl Frantz confirmed the meeting had been properly posted and 

noticed.  
 
4. Procedures Orientation  There was none tonight. 
 
5. Appearances and Communications  There were none this evening. 
 
6.    Board Matters  

D. New Business Resolutions and Motions 
v) Consider action on special exception permit at 3220 Lake Mendota Drive 
vi) Consider action on conditional use permit at 3220 Lake Mendota Drive (agenda items 
taken out of order, considered together) The Plan Commission unanimously recommended 
approval of the remodeling project proposed by Jerry and Enid Weygandt at their property at 
3220 Lake Mendota Drive. Mr. Benforado moved and Mr. Imes seconded a motion to approve 
the special exception and conditional use permits for 3220 Lake Mendota Drive. Motion passed 
unanimously. 
ii) Resolution R-2015-7 thanking David Kuenzi for his service as Village Treasurer  Mr. 
Benforado moved and Ms. Readel seconded a motion to approve Resolution R-2015-7 thanking 
David Kuenzi for his six years of service as Village Treasurer. Motion passed unanimously. 
C. Ordinances 
ii) First and possible second reading of an Ordinance L-2015-3 adopting General and 
Specific development plans for ATT Plaza  John Flad and Steve Hoff of Flad Development 
presented the company’s plans for the demolition of the ATT Plaza at the corner of University 
Avenue and Shorewood Boulevard and the construction of a four story mixed use building on the 
lot. The new building would have commercial uses on the ground floor and 38 apartments, four of 
which would be affordable, in the three stories above. Mr. Flad said he plans to ask the Village 
for developer-financed TIF funds for the project. The Plan Commission recommended approval 
of the General and Specific development plans for the property on a vote of 4 – 1. Mr. Benforado 
moved and Mr. Wade seconded a motion to waive the first reading of Ordinance L-2015-3. 
Motion passed unanimously. 
D. New Business Resolutions and Motions 
iii) Resolution R-2015-8: consider action on proposed lease with Blackhawk Country Club 
(BCC)  Village Attorney Matt Dregne of Stafford Rosenbaum said there are two remaining issues 
regarding the BCC lease: 1) How to calculate the increase in the annual rent—the proposed lease 
says it will be based on increases in the Club’s membership, BCC has suggested an alternative of 
using a flat 1.5% increase instead; and 2) The assignment of the lease for collateral purposes—the 



 
2 of 5 

 

proposed document says an assignment of the lease is not possible without the Village’s consent; 
BCC’s creditor, BMO Harris, has said that language is not acceptable.   
 
Closed Session  At 8:40 p.m., Mr. Sundquist announced the Trustees would consider going into 
Closed Session per §19.85(1)(e) due to bargaining reasons and may reconvene to open session as 
per Wisconsin State Statutes 19.85(2) to address any business that may be the result of the 
deliberations made in closed session (Blackhawk lease negotiations). The roll call vote was: Mr. 
Sundquist – yes; Mr. Lederer – yes; Mr. Benforado – yes; Ms. Readel – yes; Mr. Imes – yes; Mr. 
Wade – yes. Motion passed unanimously. Mr. Dregne, Mr. Frantz and Ms. Albrecht were asked 
to stay. The remaining attendees left the meeting.  
 
While in Closed Session the Trustees discussed the BCC lease.  
 
Open Session  At 9:02 p.m., the Board reconvened to Open Session. The roll call vote was: Mr. 
Sundquist – yes; Mr. Wade – yes; Mr. Imes – yes; Ms. Readel – yes; Mr. Benforado – yes; Mr. 
Lederer – yes. Approximately 16 attendees rejoined the meeting.  
 
Mr. Sundquist summarized the Closed Session discussion. The Trustees agreed that they were not 
interested in changing the method to calculate the annual rent increase: as stated in the proposed 
lease, the rent will be based on changes in BCC membership. The Board members also concluded 
that they did not feel the assignment of the lease was an issue. They are willing to include the 
language presently in the current lease in the proposed lease. Mr. Wade said that he could not 
support Resolution R-2015-8. He feels the lease being considered is not identical to the one 
available to the voters in the referendum. It therefore does not conform with the Village’s 
referendum ordinance. Further, economic conditions have changed since lease negotiations began 
two and a half years ago—the Club’s revenues now are increasing and a change in membership 
numbers does not accurately reflect BCC’s improved financial situation. Mr. Wade feels the rent 
in the proposed lease is too low. Mr. Benforado moved and Mr. Imes seconded a motion to 
approve Resolution R-2015-8 as revised below (italics indicate words added; strikethroughs 
indicate words removed): 
Paragraph J was revised to read:  
“The Village Board has determined that the Village of Shorewood Hills will benefit from entering 
into the Revised Amended and Restated Lease attached as Exhibit A as amended or the Revised 
Amended and Restated Lease attached as Exhibit A as amended to incorporate the rent provision 
set forth in Exhibit B or the Revised Amended and Restated Lease attached as Exhibit A as 
amended to incorporate the rent provision set forth in Exhibit B and to incorporate the collateral 
assignment provision in the existing Lease.” 
Paragraph 2 was revised to read: 
“The Amended and Restated Lease between the Village of Shorewood Hills and Blackhawk 
Country Club, Inc. (the “Agreement”), attached as Exhibit A or attached as Exhibit A as amended 
to incorporate the rent provision set forth in attached Exhibit B to this Resolution or the The 
Revised Amended and Restated Lease attached as Exhibit A as amended to incorporate the rent 
provision set forth in Exhibit B and to incorporate the collateral assignment provision in the 
existing Lease, is approved.”  
Motion passed 5 – 1 with Mr. Wade voting no.  
viii) Consider action on Village consent for Stafford Rosenbaum to represent Flad 
Development on unrelated matters while representing the Village in the Pyare and ATT 
Plaza redevelopment matters  Mr. Dregne said new attorneys have joined the Stafford 
Rosenbaum firm. One of them has done legal work for Flad Development in the past; currently he 
is not representing Flad. Mr. Dregne asked the Trustees if they would consent to the attorney 
doing similar work—regarding lease agreements and the acquisition of real estate—for Flad 



 
3 of 5 

 

Development on matters that do not affect the Village. Two Trustees indicated they would be 
uncomfortable with such an arrangement. Mr. Dregne said he would therefore not support the 
idea.  
iv) Consider action on communication from Marilyn Townsend requesting amendments to 
the October 27, 2014 and November 17, 2014 Board minutes to include Trustee discussion 
regarding potential ethics violations  Mr. Benforado volunteered to work with staff to develop a 
response. He will report back to the Trustees at the August 17, 2015 Board meeting.  
A. Payment of Bills  Village Treasurer Sean Cote reviewed the bills prior to the meeting. Ms. 
Readel moved and Mr. Wade seconded a motion to approve the payment of the end of June bills 
in the amount of $64,154.85 and $144,044.53 for July expenses, for a total of $208,199.38. 
Motion passed 5 – 0 – 1 with Mr. Benforado recusing himself since one of the bills was a 
reimbursement to him.  
B. Consent Agenda  
i) May 18, 2015 and June 22, 2015 Board minutes  
ii) Street Use Permits: Cruisin’ for a Cure on August 9, 2015; Literacy Network Run/Walk 
on October 11, 2015 
iii) Block Party Permits: Dartmouth Road Block Party on July 26, 2015; Edgehill Neighbors 
Block Party on September 12, 2015  Mr. Sundquist requested the removal of the May 18, 2015 
Board minutes and Mr. Benforado requested the removal of the Dartmouth Road Block party 
from the Consent Agenda. Mr. Benforado moved and Mr. Imes seconded a motion to approve the 
remaining items on the Consent Agenda. Motion passed unanimously. 
Mr. Sundquist suggested the revision of the second paragraph on page 2 of the May 18, 2015 
minutes to read (italics indicate words added; strikethroughs indicate words removed): “While in 
Closed Session the Trustees discussed the BCC lease with BCC.” Mr. Benforado said the 
organizers of the Dartmouth Road Block party have decided to delay the event a week, to August 
2, 2015. With those changes, the May 18, 2015 Board minutes and the Dartmouth Road Block 
party were approved unanimously. 
C. Ordinances 
i) First reading of an Ordinance L-2015-2 amending Section 7.08(2) Parking, Stopping and 
Standing regulated by extending no parking except by permit to include Saturdays, 
Sundays and holidays on the west side of University Bay Drive from 918 University Bay 
Drive to Oxford Road  The Trustees agreed discussion of the agenda item would be deferred to 
a future Board meeting.  
D. New Business Resolutions and Motions 
i) Resolution R-2015-6: consider action on approval of sanitary sewer system Compliance 
Maintenance Annual Report (CMAR)  Mr. Benforado moved and Mr. Lederer seconded a 
motion to approve the 2014 CMAR and Resolution R-2015-6. Motion passed unanimously. 
vii) Consider action on the placement of temporary no parking signs to alert residents of 
proposed changes to the Village traffic code related to parking restrictions  The Trustees 
agreed staff would be directed to place temporary no parking signs on potentially affected Village 
streets to obtain resident reaction to a proposed ordinance limiting parking.  
ix) Consider action on fee waiver policy for recreation program volunteers  Ms. Readel 
reported the Recreation Committee is concerned that it is getting more difficult to find parent 
coordinators of some of the Village recreation programs. The Committee suggested the following 
policy to incentivize parents to step forward: “Each volunteer leader of a Village of Shorewood 
Hills team or program, in accordance with its structure, will get one free registration for each 
session for the volunteer leader’s child or a child he or she designates. The programs eligible for 
this policy include Land Recreation, Four Corners, Tennis, Canoe/Kayak, Basketball and Soccer, 
and any new programs under the auspice of, and upon approval of, the Recreation Committee. 
The term volunteer leader does not include employees of that recreation program who receive 
payment for his or her position.” Ms. Readel clarified that one free registration will be provided 



 
4 of 5 

 

per program—if more than one parent is coordinating a program, the parents involved can sort 
out how the one free registration is shared. The new policy will go into effect in 2016. Ms. Readel 
moved and Mr. Imes seconded a motion to approve the new policy, with the addition of a sunset 
clause in fall, 2017. The Trustees will determine then if they would like the policy to continue. 
Motion passed unanimously.  
x) Consider action on communication from Wisconsin Professional Police Officers 
Association (WPPA) requesting representation of Shorewood Hills Police Association as 
bargaining agent and whether to recognize unit or require an election (may require closed 
session) 
Closed Session  At 9:59 p.m., Mr. Sundquist announced the Trustees would consider going into 
Closed Session per §19.85(1)(e) due to bargaining reasons and may reconvene to open session as 
per Wisconsin State Statutes 19.85(2) to address any business that may be the result of the 
deliberations made in closed session (Police Association request for representation by WPPA). 
The roll call vote was: Mr. Sundquist – yes; Mr. Lederer – yes; Mr. Benforado – yes; Ms. Readel 
– yes; Mr. Imes – yes; Mr. Wade – yes. Motion passed unanimously. Village Counsel Steve Zach 
of Boardman and Clark, LLP, Mr. Frantz, Chief Pine and Ms. Albrecht were asked to stay. The 
remaining attendees left the meeting.  
 
While in Closed Session the Trustees discussed the communication from the WPPA. 
 
Open Session  At 10:45 p.m., the Board reconvened to Open Session. The roll call vote was: Mr. 
Sundquist – yes; Mr. Wade – yes; Mr. Imes – yes; Ms. Readel – yes; Mr. Benforado – yes; Mr. 
Lederer – yes. One attendee rejoined the meeting.  
 
Mr. Sundquist summarized the Closed Session discussion: the Trustees agreed that they would 
take no action on the request this evening. The issue will be referred to the Personnel Committee 
for its consideration and recommendation to the Board.  
 
xi) Consider action on noise complaint petition  The Trustees accepted the petition regarding 
the noise apparently emanating from the UW/hospital buildings on the west side of campus. The 
Village is working with the University to address the issue. The UW has agreed to undertake a 
study to identify the noise sources; Mr. Sundquist and Mr. Frantz will meet with UW 
representatives to discuss the scope of the study. Once data are available, the Village/UW will 
determine the actions that can be taken to mitigate the noise. 
xii) Consider action on road access to Boathouse and possible actions/referrals  The Village 
recently installed a chain across the access road to the Boathouse to limit the car traffic on the 
road. The Trustees concurred the road is not suitable for vehicle travel.  
E. Appointments 
i) Carl Gulbrandsen, Gard Strother, David Ahmann and Karl Wellensiek to Finance  Mr. 
Sundquist moved and Ms. Readel seconded a motion to appoint Carl Gulbrandsen, and reappoint 
Gard Strother, David Ahmann, and Karl Wellensiek, to the Finance Committee. Motion passed 
unanimously. 
  

7. Reports of Officials and Committees 
B. Village Administrator 
i) July 4th results  Mr. Frantz reported the picnic was well attended and a success. Revenues were 
$1,219 and expenses were $1,340. 
ii) Letter from the Department of Revenue regarding assessor and the assessor’s response  
The correspondence was included in the Board Packet, for the Trustees’ information. 
Mr. Frantz also mentioned the compliments Officer Nick Pine received from a resident for his 
professionalism as a witness at a recent trial. 



 
5 of 5 

 

D. Finance Committee  The members discussed alternatives to maintaining a local municipal 
court and decided to take no action to recommend a change. Several upcoming meeting dates 
were identified for work on the 2016 budget.  
E. Plan Commission  At their last meeting, the members considered the conditional use and 
special exception permits for 3220 Lake Mendota Drive, recommended the approval of the 
zoning change for ATT Plaza, and heard presentations regarding projects proposed by Stone 
House Development for Marshall Court and Flad Development for the Pyare Square property.  
F. Public Works Committee  The paving work on the west side of the Village is underway. The 
Committee met with the Parks Committee to discuss Big Foot Park. They agreed the landscaping 
disturbed by the recent drainage work will be restored in 2016, after the sanitary sewer located in 
the area is lined this fall.  
I. Recreation Committee  The Committee is considering programs for middle school children. 
J. Parks Committee  The Committee is preparing a letter to residents living adjacent to Village 
parks whose uses are encroaching on Village property. 
The remaining Committee chairpersons had nothing further to report.  
 

8. Adjourn  Meeting adjourned at 11:40 p.m.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Colleen Boyle Albrecht 
Village Clerk 
 























VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS
DANE COUNTY WISCONSIN

ORDINANCE NO. L-20T5_2

AN Ononraxcp AvnxorNc SncrtoN 7.08(2) On rHe Vuace ConB On

ONONqAUCSS RETETING TO PARKING

The Village Board of the Village of Shorewood Hills, Dane County,

Wisconsin, ordains as follows:

1. Section 7.08(2) of the Municipal Code of the Village of Shorewood Hills is
amended as follows:

7.08 Parking, Stopping, and Standing Regulated.

(2) No parking. No owner or operator of a motor vehicle may pennit the

same to stop, to be parked or to be left standing, upon any portion of the

following streets at the following locations, except temporarily for the

pufpose of and while actually engaged in loading or unloading or in
receiving or discharging passengers and while the motor vehicle is attended

by a licensed operator so that it may be promptly be moved in case of an

emergency or to avoid obstruction of traffic:

on Beloit court during the hours of 6:00 am to 7:00 pm (excluding

Saturdays, Sundays, and holidays) except by resident permit;

On the blacktop service road situated east of the Blackhawk Country

Club clubhouse;
On the north side of Blackhawk Drive from its intersection with the

easterly boundary of Topping Road extended westerly to the easterly

line of Blackhawk Country Club;
On the south side of Blackhawk Drive from its intersection with the

westerly boundary of Topping Road westerly 240 feet to a point on

the north property line of lot 163, third addition to Shorewood;

on the easterly side of Bowdoin Road, from Amherst Drive to
Oxford Road;
On the north and south sides of Colgate Road, from the University
Bay Drive intersection to 65.2 feet west of the east property line
extended of lot 4, block 18, of the Beloit Court Replat;

On both sides of Columbia Road from the intersection of University
Bay Drive to the intersection of Wellesley Road between the hours

o

o

o

a

o



o

of 6:00 am and 7:00 pm (excluding Saturdays, Sundays and

holidays) except by resident permit;
On the north side of Columbia Road, from the westerþ line
extended of lot 27,b\ock 6, replat of College Hills First Addition to
the easterly line extended of lot 29, block 6, replat of College Hills
First addition;
On the west side of Columbia Road from its intersection with
Amherst Drive to Purdue Street;

On the west side of Cornell Court, north from the south lot line of lot
one, block 15, Replat of College Hills and College Hills First
Addition, to the north lot line of lot 9, block 15, Replat of College

Hills and College Hills First Addition, during the hours of 6:00 am

to 7:00 pm (excluding Saturdays, Sundays, and holidays) except by
resident permit;
On both sides of Edgehill Drive from Crestwood Drive to Viburnum
Drive;
On the east side of Edgehill Drive from the southerly lot line

extended of lot 137, Shorewood Second Addition northerly to Lake

Mendota Drive;
on the east side of Edgehill Drive from the midpoint of lot 253,

Fourth Addition, to a point ten (10) feet south of the southern line of
lot 258, Fourth Addition;
On the east side of Edgehill Drive from a point ten (10) feet north of
the southern line of \of 266, Fourth Addition, to a point twenty-five
(25) feet south of the southern line of lot 268, Fourth Addition;
On the westerly side of Edgehill Drive from the intersection with
Topping Road, northerly to the intersection with Blackhawk Drive
and Shorewood Boulevard;
On both sides of Harvard Drive, from the easterly edge extended of
Outlot "D" Post Farm, east to a point opposite the westerly line
extended of lot 19, block 19, Replat of College Hills and College

Hills First Addition, and, on the south side of Harvard Drive, from
the south lot line extended of lot 9, block 15, Replat of College Hills
and College Hills First Addition, north and northeasterly around lot
10 to the intersection of Harvard Drive and University Bay Drive;
On the north side of the 2700 block of Harvard Drive during the

hours of 6:00 am to 7:00 pm (excluding Saturdays, Sundays, and

holidays) except by resident permit;
On the north side of Lake Mendota Drive from a point opposite the

easterly boundary of the 16th tee of the Blackhawk Country Club,
westerly to the westerly boundary of the Village;

o

o

a

o

o

o

a



o On the north side of Lake Mendota Drive from the east line extended

of lot 3, block 4, Shorewood, to the west line extended of lot 6,

block 3, Shorewood;
o On the south side of Lake Mendota Drive from the westemmost

boundary of lot 131, second addition to Shorewood, to the midpoint
of lot 132, second addition to Shorewood;

o On the north side and the south side of Locust Drive from the

intersection with Shorewood Boulevard westerly to the intersection

with the westernmost boundary of Maple Terrace extended;

r On the east side of Maple Terrace and Burbank Place;

o On the west side of Maple Terrace and Burbank Place between the

hours of 9:00 am and I 1:00 am (excluding Saturdays, Sundays, and

holidays);
o On the north and west sides of Oak Way, from the westerly edge

extended from lot 218 of the Third Addition to a point opposite the

northerly line extended of the southern portion of partial lot 14, First
Addition;

o On south side of Oxford Road from its intersection with Dartmouth

Road to its intersection with University Bay Drive during the hours

of 8:00 arn to 3:00 pm (excluding Saturdays, Sundays, and

holidays);
o On the north side of Oxford Road, from University Bay Drive

westerly to Bowdoin Road;
o Post Farm Park or the community center parking lot, except for the

use of the swimming pool, the community center, or the Post Farm

Park;
o On the south side of Purdue Street;
r On the north side of that portion of Rose Place running in an east-

west direction from its intersection with the west line of Fern Drive
extended to the east line of the north-south section of Rose Place

extended;
o On the east side of Shorewood Boulevard between the southerly

limits of the Village and the northerly limits of the east Entrance

Park and on the west side between the southerly limits of the Village
and the intersection with Topping Road;

o On the east side of Sumac Drive along its entire length;

r On the east side of Swarthmore Court;
r On the north side of Tally Ho Lane from its intersection with

Shorewood Boulevard to its intersection with High-bury Road

between the hours of 7:30 am and 6:00 pm;
o On the south side of Topping Road, along the northern boundary of

outlot "c" westerly to the intersection with Blackhawk Drive;



On the north side of Topping Road from the easterly line extended

of lot 168, Shorewood third addition, westerly to its intersection with
Blackhawk Drive;
On the east side of University Bay Drive from the intersection with
Colgate Road, southerly to the intersection with University Avenue;

On west side of University Bay Drive from a point at the northeast

corner of the Unitarian Church property on University Bay Drive to
its intersection with Highland Avenue;

On the west side of University Bay Drive, from 918 University Bay
Drive north to its intersection with Oxford Road, during the hours of
6:00 am to 7:00 pm ,

except by resident permit;
On the easterly side of Yale Road from its intersection with Harvard
Drive to its intersection with Columbia Road.; and

From the southwest corner of the intersection of University Bay
Drive and Harvard Drive running 100 feet south on the west side of
University Bay Drive.

2. This Ordinance shall take effect upon passage and publication pursuant to

law.

The above andforegoing ordinance was duly ødopted by the Víllage Board
of the Village of Shorewood Hills øt its meeting held on

201 5.

APPROVED

Mark Sundquist, Village President

ATTEST:

Colleen Albrecht, Village Clerk

o

a

o

a













































VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS 
DANE COUNTY WISCONSIN 

 
ORDINANCE NO. L-2015-4 

 
AN ORDINANCE ACCEPTING ORDINANCE NUMBER 85 OF 2015 OF THE  
CITY OF MADISON DETACHING LAND FROM THE CITY OF MADISON  

TO THE VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS 
 
 

WHEREAS, on June 22, 2015, Jun W. Lee, Vice President of Hong Kong Metro 
Realty Company, Inc., filed a detachment petition with the City Clerk of the City of 
Madison seeking to detach the lands described in Exhibits A and B (the “Territory”) from 
the City of Madison. The population of the Territory is 0. 
 

WHEREAS, on April 30, 2015, Jun W. Lee, Vice President of Hong Kong Metro 
Realty Company, Inc., published a class 1 notice, under chapter 985 of the Wisconsin 
Statutes, in Wisconsin State Journal, a newspaper published in the City of Madison, Dane 
County, Wisconsin, of his intention to circulate a petition of detachment for the Territory. 

 
WHEREAS, Jun W. Lee, Vice President of Hong Kong Metro Realty Company, 

Inc., filed a revised detachment petition with the City Clerk of the City of Madison to 
correct the description of the property. 

 
WHEREAS, the detachment petition has been signed by a majority of the owners 

of three-fourths of the taxable land in the area within the Territory to be detached. 
 
WHEREAS, on August 4, 2015, the Common Council of the City of Madison 

adopted Ordinance Number 85 of 2015 detaching the Territory from the City of Madison 
shown in Exhibit C. 

 
WHEREAS, not more than 60 days have elapsed since the Common Council of 

the City of Madison enacted Ordinance Number 85 of 2015. 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, The Village Board of the Village of Shorewood Hills, 
Dane County, Wisconsin, ordains as follows:  
 

Section 1. Acceptance of Detachment Ordinance.  In accordance with Sec. 
66.0227, of the Wisconsin Statutes, the terms of Ordinance Number 85 of 2015, adopted 
by the Common Council of City of Madison are accepted, and the Territory is hereby 
detached from the City of Madison and attached to the Village of Shorewood Hills. 

 

0814151330 



Section 2. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall take effect upon passage and 
publication pursuant to law. 
 

The above and foregoing ordinance was duly adopted by the Village Board of the 
Village of Shorewood Hills at its meeting held on ____________________, 2015.   
 

APPROVED:  
 
 
______________________________  
Mark Sundquist, Village President 
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
____________________________  
Colleen Albrecht, Village Clerk 

 
 
APPROVED: __________ 
 
PUBLISHED: __________ 
 
 
Attachments:  Exhibit A - Legal Description  
  Exhibit B - Map of the Territory 
  Exhibit C – City of Madison Ordinance No. 85 of 2015. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
This instrument drafted by:  
Holly J. Wilson 
Stafford Rosenbaum LLP 
P.O. Box 1784 
Madison, WI  53701-1784 

0814151330 2



EXHIBIT A 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 

 

0814151330 3



EXHIBIT B 
 

MAP OF THE TERRITORY 
 

0814151330 4



 
EXHIBIT C 

 
CITY OF MADISON ORDINANCE NO. 85 OF 2015 

 

 

0814151330 5



 

 

0814151330 6



 

0814151330 7















 
 

Resolution R – 2015 – 9 
 

Of the Village of Shorewood Hills, Wisconsin, 
Thanking the City of Madison Fire Department their Service to the Village 

 
WHEREAS, Fire Chief Steven Davis, his staff, Station No. 9 and other 
responding units have provided outstanding service to the Village of 
Shorewood Hills and have also shown an ongoing commitment to 
maintain good communications and reporting to the Village; 
  
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Trustees of the 
Village of Shorewood Hills, Wisconsin, hereby thanks the City of 
Madison Fire Department for the outstanding service it provides to the 
Village. 
 
The foregoing resolution was duly adopted by the Board of Trustees of 
the Village of Shorewood Hills at a legal meeting on the 17th day of 
August, 2015. 

 
 
APPROVED:       
   Mark L Sundquist, President 
 
 
Attest:       
   Colleen Albrecht, Village Clerk 

 
































	Aug 17 0a Agenda.pdf
	Aug 17 0b Notes.pdf
	Aug 17 5-1 July 4th.pdf
	Aug 17 6A1 Bills July.pdf
	Aug 17 6A2 Bills August.pdf
	Aug 17 6A3 YTD.pdf
	Aug 17 6B1a Minutes
	Aug 17 6B1b Minutes.pdf
	Aug 17 6B2 Block Party.pdf
	Aug 17 6B3 Liquor License.pdf
	Aug 17 6B4 Employee Wages.pdf
	Aug 17 6B5 Employee Wages.pdf
	Aug 17 6B6 Employee Wages.pdf
	Aug 17 6C1 Ordinance L-2015-2.pdf
	Aug 17 6C2a Ordinance L-2015-3.pdf
	July_20_Board_Packet_Part_1 62.pdf
	July_20_Board_Packet_Part_1 63.pdf
	July_20_Board_Packet_Part_1 64.pdf
	July_20_Board_Packet_Part_1 65.pdf
	July_20_Board_Packet_Part_1 66.pdf
	July_20_Board_Packet_Part_1 67.pdf
	July_20_Board_Packet_Part_1 68.pdf
	July_20_Board_Packet_Part_1 69.pdf
	July_20_Board_Packet_Part_1 70.pdf
	July_20_Board_Packet_Part_1 71.pdf
	July_20_Board_Packet_Part_1 72.pdf

	Aug 17 6C2b TIF Options.pdf
	Aug 17 6C2c Ordinance L-2015-3 Vierbicher Letter.pdf
	Aug 17 6C3a Stafford Letter.pdf
	Aug 17 6C3b Ordinance L-2015-4.pdf
	Aug 17 6C3c Ordinance L-2015-4.pdf
	Aug 17 6D1 Resolution R-2015-9.pdf
	Aug 17 6D2 CSM.pdf
	Aug 17 6D5.pdf
	Aug 17 8a WSJ.pdf
	Aug 17 8b Thank You.pdf


<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice




